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REQUIRED COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN THE
AUDIT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
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bakertilly.com

To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Village of Mukwonago as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumnstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control.

Our consideration of intetnal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencles may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management or
smployees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent, or delect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A materlal weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and correcled, on a timely basis. We consider the followmg
deficiencies in the Village's internal coniro! to be material weaknesses:

= Internal Controls
> Financial Reporting & Material Audit Adjustments

This communication is intended solely for the informalion and use of management, those charged with
governance, and others within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified paries.

Boton Tl Vicosdoe Krmone 1P

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May 22, 2013
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

As a result of our audit procedures, we are able to provide to you the following information about where
your controls over fransactions either do not exist, or could be improved.

Below is a fist of potential controls that should be in place to achieve a higher level of reliability that errors
or irregularities in your processes would be discovered by your staff. Our procedures identified that these
controls do not currently exist for the Village. Keep in mind that some of these controls may not be
praclical due to your staff size or other reasons. However, we are required to communicate these to you.
In addition, as you make changes within your organization, and we continue to rotate audit procedures,
more controls of this kind will likely be communicated to you.

CONTROLS OVER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/DISBURSEMENTS
1. In some governments, there is a formal purchase-order process in place and used
as required. The Village has an outdaled policy that is no longer followed. We
recommend that the Village revisit the policy and update.
CONTROLS OVER PAYROLL .

1. Persons preparing the payroll are independent of other personnel duties and
restricted from access to the payroll account,

2. Client control over account classification for payroll disbursements.
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

1. Adjusting journal entries and suppotting documentation are reviewed and approved
by an appropriate person who is not the original preparer.

We wotld be happy to further explain the above recommendations and assist in their implementation if so
desirad by rnanagement.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING & MATERIAL AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS

As in previous years, we are required to comment on your internal controls. in theory, a properly
designed system of internal controls consists of enough people, with sufficient training, to process and
record monthly transactions, as well as prepares a complete set of annual financial statements. However,
while most municipality’s staff do a good job of processing and recording monthly transactions, the reality
is that very few have the background, training or time needed to prepare annual financial statements.

The definition of a material weakness in internal control includes consideration of the year end financial
reporting process including the preparation of financial statements. in order for your municipality to avoid
this type of material weakness, the system of internal controls would need to be able to accomplish the
following:

1. Maintain the municipality's books and records in such a condition that the auditor is not able to
identify any material journal enfries as a result of our audit procedures. Our audit procedures
identified approximately ten adjustments, seven of a material amount.

2. Be capable of preparing a complete set of year end financial statements in such a condition that
the auditor is not able to identify any material changes as a result of the audit. A complete set of
financial statements include the individual fund statements, all conversion entries, the
government-wide statements and footnote disclosures. In the current year, the Village staff
prepared the individual fund statemants, but did not complete the conversion entries, the
government-wide statements and footnole disclosures.

This high level of internal control over financial reporting can be a difficult task for governments. As
opposed to farge private companies, most governments operate with only enough staff to process
monthly transactions and reports, and often rely on their auditors to prepare the year end entries and
financial reporting. As this is the case with your municipality, we are now required to inform you that these
are material weaknesses in your internal controls.

We welcome any comments or questions you have regarding your system of internal controls.
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OTHER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE




TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT

As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisling
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit.

As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next
year's audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our
next audit:

a. We address the significant risks or material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
through our detailed audit procedures.

b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the
risk of material noncompliance related to the federal and state awards whather due to etror or
fraud, and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a
sufficient understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of
controls relevant to an audit of the federal and state awards and to determine whether they have
been implemented. We will use such knowledge to:

> |dentify types of potential noncompliance.
> Consider factors that affect the risks of material noncompliance,
> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and other audit procedures.

We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.

. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, sither individually or in the aggregate,
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In petforming the audit, we are
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the
financlal statements. Our responsibility is to plah and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance that matsrial misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detecled.
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TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont,)

We are very interested in your views regarding certain maiters. Those matters are listed here:
a. We typically will communicate with your top levsl of management unless you tell us otherwise.

b. Woe understand that the village's trustees have the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity.

¢. We need to know your views about your organization’s objeclives and strategies, and the related
business risks that may result in material misstatements,

d.  Which matters do you consider watrant particular aftention during the audit, and are there any
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken?

e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies?

. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements or the
federal or state awards?

Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the village
concerning:

a. The village's internal controt and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control?

b. The detection or the possibility of fraud?

We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws,
accounting standards, governance practices, or other refated matters, or in response to previous
communications with us.

With regard to the timing of our audh, here is some general information. We will perform preliminary
financial audit work during the months of October-December, and sometimes early January. Qur final
financial fieldwork is scheduled during the spring to best coincide with your readiness and report
deadlines. After fisldwork, we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of
our repon for your review. Finat copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval
by your staff. This is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of
factors.

Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit,
it does not change the auditor's sole responsibility to determine the overall audil strategy and the audit
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence. :

We realize that you may have questions or wish to provide other feedback. We welcome the opporiunity
to talk with you.
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COMMUNICATION OF OTHER CONTROL DEFICIENCIES, RECOMMENDATIONS AND
INFORMATIONAL POINTS TO MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NOT MATERIAL WEAKNESSES OR
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES




COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Information Technology System

As part of the audit process, we reviewed certain controls refated to the Village's information technology
system. The following are some typical controls that are used to ensure the highest level of security is in
place over information technology systems however, they have not been implemented by the Village.
Management should consider the risks associated with its information technology system and it is related
controls and determine if these additional controls should be implemented.

1. Allfinancially Impacted applications and the network should have a login and password which is
unigue for every user and the user name should not be shared by anyone. Also, the user shoutld
not have more than one username. Generic, shared, temporary and system accounts should be
removed. Specifically, the Village should look to disable the shared account in Banyon — BDS,
the shared cash register account, and should consider removal of administrative access to
payroll for those employees that do not require such access,

2. Passwords should be changed every 90 days, require a minimum of 6 characters, require strong
{complex) passwords, and password history should be tracked $0 users can not reuse recent
previous passwords. Additionally, user accounts should lock after 3-5 failed login attempts.
Further, IT should not retain ussr’s password information. Banyon passwords should be more
complex due to the fact that all user ID’s currently possess "Full Access” o the system.

3. Termination of access rights should accur timely (within 72 hours). This includes both the
network and financial systems {Banyon and Payroll Data) as applicable.

4. The server room should be locked at all times and the access to this room shouid be limited to
those with a business need. Currently, all Village employees have a key to this room and the room
is not lacked during the day.

5, Banyon SQL database backup tapes should be rotated offsite more frequently.

INFORMATIONAL POINTS

GASB STATEMENT NO. 65: ITEMS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED AS ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65 — ftems Previously Reported as
Assels and Liabilities will result in a reclassilication of some financial statement line items on the
Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet of governments. The new financial staternent categories of
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will become more commonly used upon
implementation of this standard. In addition 1o reclassifications to these new categories, the standard will
also result in a change in the accounting treatment for certain items, inciuding debt issuance costs. This
standard is effeclive for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, and was intended to complement
Statement No. 63 — Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position.
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INFORMATIONAL POINTS (continued)

GASB STATEMENT NO. 65: ITEMS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED AS ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Some of the most significant changes of this standard that will impact many governments include:

> Debt issuance costs previously amortized will now be expensed in the period Incurred

> lLosses on refunding of debt will now be classtfied as a deferred outilow of resources, and
consistent with the change noted previously, the formuta for calculating the loss has been
adjusted to exclude debt issuance costs (prospectively)

> Regulatory credits recorded by utilities will now be recorded sither as a liability or a deferred
inflow of resources, depending on how the credil will be applied in the future

> The terminofogy of deferred revenue is no longer permitted to be used. In addition, the items
previously recorded as deferred revenue will need to be analyzed to determine i they now will be
presented as a deferred inflow of resources or a liability

> The major fund determination formula has been updated to include the new categories
Woe are available to discuss these changes and the impact on your financial statements.
DEPARTMENTAL CONTROLS

As part of our annual audit process, we focus our efforts on the primary accounting systems, internal
controls, and procedures used by the Village. This is in keeping with our goal to provide an audit opinion
which states that the financial statements of the Village are correct in all material respects.

In some cases, the primary system of accounting procedures and controls of the Village are supported by
smaller systems which are decentralized, and reside within a depariment or location. In many cases,
those systems are as simple as handling cash collections and remilting those collections to the Village. In
other cases, the department may send invoices or statements of amounts due, and track collections of
those amounts in a standalone accounts receivable system.

Generally, the more centralized a function is, the easier it is to design and implement accounting controls
that provide some level of checks and balances. That is because you are able to divide certain tasks over
the people availabie to achieve some segregation of duties. For those tasks that are decentralized, it is
usually very difficult to provide for proper segregation of duties. Therefore, with one person being involved
in most or all aspects of a transaction, you lose the ability to rely on the controls o achieve the
safeguarding of assets and reliability of financial records.

As auditors, we are required to communicate with you on a variety of topics. Since there is now more
emphasis on internal controls and management's responsibilities, we believe it is appropriate to make
sure that you are informed about the lack of segregation of duties that may ocour at departments or
locations that handle cash or do miscellaneous billing. Examples in your Village that may fit this situation
may include the following:

Police department
Library
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INFORMATIONAL POINTS (continued)

DEPARTMENTAL CONTROLS (Cantinued)

As auditors, we are required to focus on the financial statements at a highly summarized level and our
audit procedures support our opinion on those financial statements, Departments or locations that handle
relatively smaller amounts of money are not the primary focus of our audit. Yet, because of the lack of
segregation of duties, the opportunity for loss is higher there than in centralized functions that have more
controls.

Because management is responsible for designing and implementing controls and procedures to detect
and prevent fraud, we believe that is important for us to communicate this information to you. We have no
knowledge of any fraud that has occurred or is suspected to have occurred within the depariments
mentioned above. Howsver, your role as the governing body is 1o assess your tisk areas and determine
thal the appropriate level of controls and procedures are in place. As always, the costs of controls and
staffing must be weighed against the perceived benefits of safeguarding your assets.

Without adding staff or splitting up the duties, your own day-to-day contact and knowledge of the
operation are also important mitigating factors.
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANGE
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Baker Till Viechow Krause, ELP
777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as your auditor.

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Village of Mukwonago for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2012 and have issued our report therean dated May 22, 2013, This [etier presents
communications required by our professional standards,

OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED
IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America.
These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are free of
material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. Our audit inciuded examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles
used and significant estimates mads by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

As part of the audit we obtained an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control,
sufficlent to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and io design the nature,
timing and extent of further audit procedures. The audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal
controls or to identify deficiencies in internal control,

OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do
not have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information
contained in client prepared documents, such as official statements refated to debt issues.

PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our prior
year Report on Internal Control dated June 1, 2012,
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriale accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateniess of accounting policies
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the Village are described in Note | o the
financial statements. As described in Note | to the financial statements, the Village changed accounting policies
related to deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows or resources, and net position by adopting
Governmental Accounting Standards {GASB) Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Ottflows or
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, in 2012, Implementing this standard had no
significant effect on the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the Village during the
year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to
inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus,

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial stalements prepared by managsment and are based
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that fulure events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. We are not aware of any particular sensitive accounting estimates utifized by management in its
financlal stalements process.

Financial Statement Disclosures

The disclosures in the financial staterments are neutral, consistent, and clear.
DiFFIcULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT

We encountered nd significant difficulties in dealing with management in parforming our audit.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

Management has corrected all such misstatements.
The following is a summary of material financial statement misstatements (audit adjustments);

Expense amounts for Water Utility Garage - $46,182

Record amounts as mains expenditures - $50,171

Correct depreciation expense and A/D in Water Utility — $132,496
Correct depreciation expense and A/D in Sewer Utility - $421,550
Record Utility financed adjustment to CIAC - $81,185

Record allowance for uncollectible accounts - $111,407

N o e e

Record Amortization of Sewer loss refunding - $35,479
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS (Continued)

In addition, we prepared GASB No. 34 conversion entries which are summarized in the “Reconciliation of the
Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position” and the “Reconciliation of the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities” in the financlal statements.

DISAGREEMENTS WiTH MANAGEMENT

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing maiter that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

In some cases, management may decide to cansult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ apinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter. This letter follows this required communication.

INDEPENDENCE

We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and the Village that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

Relating to our audit of the financial statements of the Village of Mukwonago for the year ended December 31,
2012, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP hereby confirms that we are, in our professional judgment, independent
with respect to the Village in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct issuead by the American
Institute of Ceriified Public Accountants, and provided no services to the Village other than audit services
provided in connection with the audit of the current year's financial statements and nonaudit services which in
our judgment do not impair our independence,

> Financial statement preparation
> Adjusting journal entries

None of these nonaudit services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, including
Government Auditing Standards.
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES

We generally discuss a vatlety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Village's auditors, However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention,

OTHER MATTERS

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and recongciled the
supplementary Information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Village Board and management and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the information included in this letter and any other matters. Thank you
for allowing us to serve you.

Bt Tilly Viesdene Koo, LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May 22, 2013
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MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS




Village of Mukwonago

P.Q, Box 206, 440 River Crast Court, Mukwonago, Wisconsin - 53149 wivw.villagecfmukwonage.com
(262)363-6420  Fax: [262)363-6425

May 22, 2013

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor
Milwaukee, WI 53202

Dear Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP:

We are providing this leiter In connection with your audlt of the financial statements of the Village of Mukwonago

as of December 31, 2012 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing an oplnion as to whether the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respacts, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remalning fund Information of the  Village
of Mukwonago and the respective changes i financlal position and cash flows, where applicable, in conformity with
accounting princlples generally accepted in the United States of Amarica. We confirm that we are responsible for the
falr presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America. We are also responsibls for adopting sound accounting policies,
establishing and malntaining internal control over financial reporting, and preventing and detecting fraud.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. [temns are considerad
matertal, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in the light of
surrounding circumstances, makes It probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information
would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarlly
small in amount could be considered materlal as a resuil of qualitaiive faclors.

We conflrm, o the best of cur knowledge and helief, the following representations made to you during your audit.
Financial Statements
1. We have fulfilled our responsibiliies, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement lstter.

2. The financlal statements referred to above are falrly presented in conformity with accounting princlples generally
accepled in the United States of America and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of
the primary government and all component units required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America to be Included in the financial reporting entity.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenancs of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and malntenance of internal conltrol to prevent
and detect fraud.

8. Significant assumpfions we used in making accounting estimates are reaschable.

6. All events subsequent to the dale of the financlal statements and for which accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of Amerlea require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No
evenls, including nstances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through
the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosire In the aforermentioned financial statemanis.




7. Al known audit and hookkesping adjustments have been included n our financial statements, and we are in
agreement with those adjusiments. :

8. There are no unasserted clains or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion and must
be disclosed in accordance with accounting princlples generally accepted In the United States of America.

9. Guarantees, whether written or aral, under which the Village is contingently liable, if any, have been propeily
recorded or disclosed.

Informafion Provided

10. We have provided you with:

a. Access lo all Information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of the
financial statements, such as records, decumentation, and other matiers.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit,

¢. Unrestricted accoss to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit

evidence.
d. Minutes of the meelings of the Village Board or summarles of aclions of recent ineelings for which minutes have
not yet been prepared.

1. Al'materlal transactions have been recorded In the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements, '

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the rigk that the financial statements may be méterial]y
misstated as a result of fraud.

13. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspscted fraud that affects the entity and involves:

a, Management,
b, Employees who have significant roles in internal contral, or
¢. Others where the fraud could have a materlal effect on the financial statements.

14. We have no knowledge of any altegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in
communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others,

16. There are no known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing
financiat statements.

16. There are no known actual or possibis litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects should be considered
whan preparing the financlal statements.

17. There are no known related parties or related parly relationships and transactions of which we are aware,
Other
18. We have made available to you all financlal records and related data.

19. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencles in,
financlal reporling practices,

20. We have taken timely and appropilate steps to remedy fraud, violations of laws, regulations, contracts or grant
agresiments, or abuise that you have reported to us, .




21. We have identifled to you any previous financial audits, altestatlon engagements, and other studies related to the
audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implamentsd,

22. The Village has no plans or intentions that may malerially affect the carrylng vaive or classification of assets,
llabilitles, or equity,

23, We are responsible for compliance with federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, Including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identified and
disclosed to you all federal, state, and local laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
that we helisve have a direct and materlal effect on the deterimination of financial statement amounts or other
financial data significant to the audit obJectives, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific
activitles In separate funds.

24, There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, federal, state, and local laws or regulations (including
those partalning to adopting and amending budgeis), provistons of contracts and grant agreements, tax or dabt
limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should he considered for disclosure in the financial
statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporling on noncompliance.

b. Other liabilities or galn or loss conlingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

¢. Nonspendable, restricted, commitled, or assigned fund balances thal were not properly authorized and
approved.

d. Rates heing charged to customers other than the rates as authorized by the applicable authoritative body.
¢, Violations of restrictions placed on revenues as a result of bond resolution covenants such as reveniie
distribution or debt service funding.

26. In regards to the nonatlest services parformed by you listed bsfow, we have 1) made all management decisions
and performed all managsment functions; 2) designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience
to overses the services; 8) evaluated the adeqguacy and results of the services performed, and 4} acceplad
responsibnlty for the results of the services.

a. Financial statement praparation
b. Adjusting journal entrles

None of these non attest services constilute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, including
Government Audifing Standards.

28. The Village of Mukwonago has safisfactory tille to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset heen pledged as collateral.

27. The Village of Mukwonago has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a materlal
effect on the financlal statement In the event of noncompliance.

28. We have followed all applicable laws and regulafions In adopting, approving, and amending budgets.

29. The financlal statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly
disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

30. The financial statements properly classify ali funds and activities,

31. Components of net position (nst investment In capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and equilty amounts are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.




32.7The Village of Mukwonago has no derivative financlal instruments such as contracts that could be assigned to
someone glse or net setlled, interest rate swaps, collars or caps,

33. Provislons for uncolisctible receivables have been proparly identified and recorded.

34. Expenses have heen appropriately classified in or alfocated to functions and programs In the statement of
aclivities, and allocafions have been made on a reasonable basis.

35. Revenues are appropriately classified In the statement of activities within program revenues, general revenues,
contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal,

36. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.
37. Deposlts and investment securities are properly classified as to risk, and Investments are praperly valued.

38. Capilal assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable,
depreclatedfamoriizad,

38. We have appropriately disclosed the Village of Mukwonago's policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
posltion are avatlable and have determined that net position were properly recognized under the policy. We have
also disclosed our policy regarding how restricted and unrestricted fund balance Is used when an expenditure is
Incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance Is available, including the spending hierarchy for
committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts. .

40, We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS1). The RSI fs measured and
presented within prescribed guldelines and the methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from
those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations
underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. :

41. With respect to the combining and individual fund financial statements:

a. We acknowledge our responsibllily for presenting the combining and individual fund financlat statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we belteve the
combining and individual fund financial statements, including its form ang content, is fairly presented in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The methods of
measurement and presentation of the combining and indlvidual fund financial statements have not shanged
from those used in the prior perlod, and we have disclosed fo you any significant assumptions or Interpretations
underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary Information.

b. If the combining and Individual fund financial statements Is not presented with the audited financial statements,
we will make the audited financlal statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary
Information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the auditor's report thereon.

Sincerely,

Village of Mukwonago -

Slgnedﬁi }\)\7524/&5 7/’."8%’,-* |

Diana Doherly

ll/'—‘ -j-'

Slgned:
Stevs Bragtz ¥ ‘i
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BAKER TILLY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ~ pasr il Vischow Kiouse 1P

Mihwaukee, W153202-3313
wl 414 777 5500

fax 414 777 55355
bakeccilly.com

To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Mukwonago,
Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Village of Mukwonago’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Village of Mukwonage's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of
Mukwonago's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemants.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinfons.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material rospects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Mukwonago, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2012 and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America.

wf RUATIRTATOLOT AT g 2]
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note |, the Village of Mukwonago adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial
Reporting for Deferred Qutffows of Resources, Deferrad Inflows of Resources, and Net Posifion, effective
January 1, 2012, Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Aclual - General Fund and Schedule of
Rsvenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Fire and Ambulance Fund, as
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a pari of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate opsrational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial staternents, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We -
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management discussion and analysis that accounting principles generatly
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, Is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for pfacing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Qur opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinicns on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village of Mukwonago's basic financial statements. The Detailed Schedule of Revenues - Budget
and Actual - General Fund, the Detailed Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Aclual - General Fund, and the
combining tinancial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information diractly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the hasic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Detailed Schedule of Revenues - Budget
and Aciual - General Fund, the Detailed Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Aclual - General Fund, and the
combining financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects, in refation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

nyj‘/% V%w %““"W/ LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May 22, 2013
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables (net)
Taxes recelvable
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governmental units
Accrued interest
Inventories and prepaid {tems
Internal batances
Unamortized debt issuance expenses
Restricted Assets
Cash and invesiments
Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted for
Debt service
Equipment replacement
impact fees
Revolving loans
Library purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

Business -
Govemmental Type
Activities Activities Totals

$ 77208827 §$ 963,635 $ 8,262,462
5,772,563 78,933 5,851,496
292,300 734,001 1,026,301
1,768,853 361,084 2,130,937
30,519 - 30,519
- 1,424 1,424
108,035 34,688 143,723
31,850 (31,850) -
440,179 245,770 685,949
1,484,148 2,103,858 3,588,006
1,108,628 572,364 1,681,992
61,158 488,521 549,679
25,742,378 29,621,136 55,363,514
44,142,438 35,173,564 79,316,002
642,540 163,050 805,580
5,470,230 - 5,470,230
1,719,905 879,054 2,598,959
25,226,114 12,640,179 37,866,293
33,058,789 13,682,283 48,741,072
4,232,266 18,674,618 21,875,060
3,483,736 80,735 3,664,471
- 782,819 782,819
1,477,962 - 1,477,962
86,856 - 86,856
258,812 - 258,812
1,544,017 1,853,108 4,528,950
$ 11,083,649 $ 21491281 $ 32,574,030
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Governmental Activities
General government $ 780,878 % 159,782 % - 50,500 § 247,560
Public safety 3,643,311 1,114,481 110,004 113,975
Public works 2,115,934 263,245 660,313 1,706,558
Health and human services 2,725 - - -
Culture, recreation and education 1,564,358 41,657 450,479 38,684
Conservation and development 116,049 - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 1,122,645 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 9,345,901 1,579,165 1,271,296 2,106,777
Business-Type Activities
Water 1,332,660 1,804,397 - 81,185
Sanitary Sewer Utility 1,647,571 1,412,517 - 81,060
Total Business-Type Activilies 2,980,231 3,216,914 - 162,245
Total $ 12,326,132 3 4,796,079 $§ 1,271,206 $ 2,269,022

General revenuss
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Property taxes, levied for TIF districts
Other taxes
Intergovernmental revenues not restricted to specific programs
Investment income
Gain on disposal of assels
Miscellaneous

Total general reventies

Transfers

Change in net position

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

Seo accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Totals

(323,037) $ - $ (323,037}
(2,304,851) - {2,304,851)
514,182 - 514,182
(2,725) - (2,725)
(1,033,538) (1,033,538)
{116,049) - {116,049)
{1,122,645) - {1,122,645)
{4,388,663) - {4,388,663)
- 552,922 552,922

- {153,994) {153,994)

- 398,928 398,928
(4,388,663) 398,928 {3,989,735)
3,106,583 3,108,583
1,669,430 1,669,430
657,369 - 657,369
5,990 - 5,990
340,890 - 340,880
168,986 49,418 218,404
500 - 500

30,175 10,279 40,454
5,879,923 59,697 6,039,620
355,196 (855,196) -
1,946,456 103,429 2,049,885
9,137,193 21,387,852 30,525,045
$ 11,083,649 $& 21,491,281 $ 32,574,930

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables

Taxes

Accounts receivable , net of allowance

Special assessments

Due from other governments
Due from other funds ‘
Prepaid items
Restricted assets

Cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Due to other goverments

Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspandahle
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassignad

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fire and
General Ambulance Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund
$ 1,810,517 § 118,456 $ 825,008
2,010,205 222,981 1,866,355 -
164,304 121,162 -
4,967 - 1,764,886
28,178 2,341 -
113,438 5,004 -
82,003 11,018 -
$ 4,313,612 § 480,962 $ 4,557,239
% 112,175 § 249096 $ -
75,381 26,944 -
18,0186 33,781 208
2,014,480 343,048 3,731,241
17,770 33,727 -
2,032,822 462,496 3,731,447
82,003 11,018 -
- - 825,792
- 7,448 -
744,436 - -
1,254,351 - -
2,080,790 18,4686 825,792
$ 43136812 $ 480,962 $ 4,557,230

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Tax Incremental Nonmajor Total
District No. 3 Governmental  Governmentai
Fund Funds Funds
$ 793,894 $ 3,649,882 $ 7,208,827
623,239 949,783 5,772,563
. 6,834 282,300
- - 1,768,853
- - 30,518
13,016 48,932 180,390
1356 15,879 109,035
- 1,484,148 1,484,148
$ 1,430,384 $ 6,155,438 $ 16,937,635
$ - 8 161,436 § 298,607
167 26,597 129,089
47,600 54,037 148,540
623,239 945,148 7,657,156
- 115,000 166,497
670,906 1,302,218 8,399,889
135 15,879 109,035
759,343 1,823,630 3,408,765
- 3,013,711 3,021,158
- - 744,436
- - 1,254,361
759,478 4,853,220 8,537,746
$ 1,430,384 $ 6,165,438 $ 16,037,635

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of Degember 31, 2012

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds : $ 8,537,746

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net poshiion ara
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds

Land 1,109,628
Construction in progress 61,158
Other Capital Assets 35,570,616
Less: Accumulated depreciationfamontization : (9,828,238)

Some recelvables that are not currently availablee are reparted as deferred
revenues In the fund financial statements but are recognized as ravenue when
earned in the government-wide statements 2,186,926

Some liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Bonds and notes payable (26,228,844)
Compensated absences (602,175)
Accrued interest (163,347)
Unamoitized debt discount and issue costs 440,179
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 11,083,649
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF BEVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Fire and
General Ambulance Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,132,800 $ 93,430 $ 1,869,430
Special assessments - - 246,079
Intergovernmental 980,259 6,047 -
Licenses and permits 282,924 - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 125,034 - -
Public charges for services 26,409 638,792 -
Intergovernmental charges for services 134,669 160,260 35,617
Investment income 8,668 451 90,754
Miscellaneous 78,684 1,828 -
Total Revenles 3,779,247 900,805 2,741,880
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 718,878 - -
Public safety 2,286,011 959,761 -
Public works 711,165 -
Health and human services 2,725 -
Culitire, recreation and education 151,890 -
Conservation and development 116,051 -
Capital Outlay 100 6,811 -
Debt Service
Principal - - 1,619,335
Interest and fees - - 776,404
Total Expenditures 3,986,820 866,572 2,395,739
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (207,573) {65,767) 346,141
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 355,196 100,555 -
Transfers out {232,328) (33.,727) -
Sale of capital assels 500 - -
Premium on debt issued : - - -
Refunding bonds issued - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 123,368 66,828 -
Net Change in Fund Balances (84,205) 1,061 346,141
FUND BALANCES - Beginning of Year 2,164,995 17,405 479,651
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR § 2,080,790 § 18,466 § 825,792

Sea accompanying notes to the financial statements,
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Tax Incremental Nonmajor Total
District No. 3 Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

$ 657,369 % 802,631 % 5,455,560
- - 948,079

4,925 536,856 1,528,087

- 133,370 426,294

- - 126,034

- 136,666 801,867

- 108,088 439,434

4,399 13,321 117,583

- 284,290 364,699

666,693 2,118,022 10,204,647
19,893 - 738,871

- - 3,245,772

- 869,772 1,380,937

- - 2,725

- 766,457 918,347

- 116,051

- 1,254,138 1,261,049
4,744,220 - 6,363,555
315,140 - 1,091,544

5,079,353 2,690,367 15,118,851
(4,412,660} (574,345) {4,814,204)
- 214,432 670,183
(47,500) {1,432) (314,987)

- 16,747 17,247

81,798 - 81,798
3,620,000 - 3,620,000
3,654,298 229,747 4,074,241
{758,362) (344,598) {839,963)
1,517,840 5,197,818 8,377,709
$ 750,478 & 4,853,220 $ 8,637,746

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (839,963)

Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. Howevar in the
statement of net position, the cost of these assets is capitalized and they are
depreciated over their estimated usefu! lives and reported as depreciation expense.
in the statement of aclivities

Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial

statemaents, but is capitalized in the government-wide statements 1,261,049
Some ltems reported as outlay were not capitalized (187,922)
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide statements (1,600,826)
Net book value of assets retired (27,403)
Some items reported as operating expenditures in the fund financial

statements but are capfitalized in the government-wide statements 35,816

Receivables not currently available are reported as revenue when collected
or currently available in the fund financial statements but are recognized as
revenue when earned in the government-wide financial statements.
Special assessments _ 681,544

Debt issued provides current financial resources to govemmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabHlities in the statement of

net position. .
Debt issued {8,620,000)
Principal repaid 6,363,565

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financtal resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds, .
Compensated absences {5,529)
Accrued interest on debt 15,008

Governmental funds report debt premiums, discounts and issuance costs as
other financing sources (uses) or expendiiures. In the statement of net position,
they are deferred and reported as other assets or deductions from fong-term debt.
They are allocated over the period the debt is outstanding in the statement of activilies
and are reported as interest expense.

Bebt issuance costs capitalized 75,513
Debt premium capitalized (81,798)
Amortization of loss on refunding {62,153)
Amortization of debt issuance costs (83,639)
Amortization of debt premiums 24,228
CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1,947,670

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2012

Business-lype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Water Uity Sewer Utility Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Invesiments $ 495,533 $ 468,102 $ 963,635
Receivable - -
Accounts 394,687 339,314 734,001
Special assessments 44,125 34,808 78,933
Accrued interest 912 512 1,424
DPue from other funds 56,389 18,595 74,984
Inventories 15,431 - 15,431
Prepaid items 5,327 13,930 19,257
Restricted Assets
Cash and investments 57,368 58,534 115,902
Total Current Assetls 1,069,772 933,795 2,003,567
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets
Cash and investments 466,359 1,521,507 1,987,956
Capital Assets ‘
Land 556,467 15,897 572,364
Construction in progress 440,517 48,004 488,521
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 15,211,142 14,409,994 29,621,136
Other Assels
Special assessments receivable 205,788 155,296 361,084
Unamortized debt issuance expenses 56,028 189,741 245,770
Total Nen-Current Assets 16,936,302 16,340,529 33,276,831
Total Assets 18,006,074 17,274,324 35,280,398

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-lype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Water Utility Sewer Utility Totals
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 17,283 § 64,445 § 81,728
Accrued liabilities 11,798 17,353 29,151
Accrued interest payable 6,990 10,014 17,004
Due to other funds 49,863 56,871 106,834
Current portion of long-term debt 184,283 111,245 295,628
Current portion of compensated
absences 7,683 2,470 10,153
Liabilities Payable From Restricted
Assets
Accrued interest payable 15,719 19,448 35,167
Current portion of revenue bonds
payable from restricted 268,465 304,908 573,373
Total Current Liabilities 562,084 586,854 1,148,938
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Bonds and notes payable 5,349,615 7,239,794 12,589,409
Compsnsated absences 38,418 12,362 50,770
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,388,033 7,252,146 12,640,179
Total Liabilities 5,950,117 7,839,000 13,789,117
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 10,928,151 7,746,467 18,674,618
Restricted far
Equipment replacement - 782,819 782,819
Debt service 41,649 39,086 80,735
Unrestricted 1,086,157 866,952 1,953,109
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 12,055957 § 9,435324 § 21,491,281

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 13
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance
Depreciation

Taxes
Total Operating Expenses

Operaling Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
fnvesiment income
Miscellaneous
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expense)

income (Loss) Before Contributions
Transfers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions
Transtfers in
Transfers out - tax equivalent

Total Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Water Utility Sewer Utility Totals

$ 1,804,397 $ 1,412,517 $ 3,216,914
644,776 630,257 1,275,033

403,427 655,552 1,058,979

17,723 20,707 38,430
1,085,926 1,308,516 2,372,442
738,471 108,001 844,472

25,519 23,809 49,418

6,677 3,602 10,279

(266,734) {341,055) (607,789}
(234,538) {313,554) (548,092}
503,933 {207,653} 296,380

81,185 81,060 162,245

- 41,099 41,099
(390,048) (7,147) (397,195}
(308,863) 115,912 {192,951)
185,070 (91,641) 103,429
11,860,887 9,526,965 21,387,852

$ 12,055,957 % 9,435,324 $ 21,481,281

See accompanying notes o the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers
Pald to suppliers for goods and services
Paid to employees for services

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Invastment income

Net Gash Flows From Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Patd to municipality for tax equivalent
Transfers

Net Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FRCM CAFPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Debit retired

Interest paid

Special assessments received

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Salvage on retirement of plant

Net Cash Flows From Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

Business - Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Water Sewsr
Utility Utility Totals
$ 1,967,200 $ 1,760,601 $ 3,727,801
(748,149) {644,132) (1,392,281)
{214,077} {277,413) (491,490}
1,004,974 839,056 1,844,030
28,657 26,284 52,941
26,657 26,284 52,941
(348,049) (7,147) {355,196)
{41,999) 41,999 -
{390,048) 34,852 (355,196)
(427,358) (413,323) (840,681}
(247,424) (297,179) (544,603)
57,660 88,432 146,082
{117,941) (277,112) (395,053)
11,111 83 11,194
(723,952) {899,099) (1,623,051}
{82,369) 1,093 (81,276)
1,101,629 2,047,140 3,148,769

$ 1019260 § 2048233 $ 3,067,493

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business - Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Water Sewer
Utility Utility Totals
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 738471 % 106,001 §$ 844,472
Nonoperating revenue 6,677 3,602 10,279
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Flows From Operating
Activities
Depreciation 403,427 655,552 1,058,979
Depraciation charged to other funds 24,214 (24,214) -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable {14,785) (47,680) {62,345)
Materials and supplies 937 - 937
Prepaid items {1,232) {5,013) (6,245)
Due from municipality 146,697 416,256 562,953
Accounts payable (80,974) {108,855) {189,829)
Due to municipality {222,166) (135,170) {357,336)
Accrued fiabilities 3,520 (21,288) {17,768)
Cther current liabilities 188 897 1,085
Pue 1o water utility - (1,152} {1,162)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,004,974 § 839,056 $ 1,844,030
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS TO THE STATEMENT OF
NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Cash and investments - statement of net position $ 495533 $ 468,102 $ 963,635
Restricted cash and investments - Restricted - statement -
of net position 523,727 1,680,131 2,103,858
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,019,260 $§ 2,048,233 § 3,067,493
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Special assessments levied $ 81,186 $ 81,060

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2012

Private Purpose

Trust Agency Fund
Library Trust Tax Escrow
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments 8 31,326 § 6,161,028
Taxes receivable - 3,081,147
Total Assets 31,326 9,242,175
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - 66,800
Due to other governments - 9,175,375
Total Liabilities - 9,242,175
NET POSITION
Held in trust $ 31,326 % -

See accompanying notes to ihe financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Private Purpose

Trust
Library Trust
Fund
ADDITIONS

Investment income ) 184
Change in Net Positlon 184
NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 31,142
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 31,326

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policles of the Village of Mukwonago, Wisconsin conform to accounting principles
generally acceptad in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The accepted
standard-setiing body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the Village of Mukwonago. The reporting entity for the village
consists of (a) the primary government, (b} organizations for which the primary government is financlally
accouniable, and (c} other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financlal statements to
be misleading or incomplete. A legally separate organization should be reported as a component unit if the
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable for the organization. The primary
govarnment is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body
and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization o
provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government may
be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government.

A legally separate, tax exempt organization shauld be reported as a component unit of a reporting entity if
all of the following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the separats
organization are enlirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component
units, or its constituents; (2) The primary government is entitled fo, or has the ability to otherwise access, a
majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization; (3) The economic
regources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or ils
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government. Blended component unils, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government's operations and are reported with similar funds of the pritmary government. This report does
not contain any component units,

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In June 2011, the GASB issued staternent No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outfiows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides financial reporting
guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Previous financial
reporting standards did not include guidance for these elements, which are distinct from assels and
liabilities.

The village mads the decision to implement this standard effective January 1, 2012,
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporiing
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type acfivities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernimental ravenues, and other nonexchange revenuss,
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or
services,
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(cont.)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
Government-Wide Financial Statementis {cont.)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. The village does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement
of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benelfit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as
general revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reporied as general reventtes rather than as
program revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reportting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, net posttion/fund equity, revenues, and
expenditure/expenses.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and proprietary
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the village or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets/deferred outflows of resources, liabilities/deferred inflows of resources, revenues,
or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10% of
the corresponding lotal for all funds of that category or type, and

b. The same element of the individual governmental or enterprise fund that met the 10% test is at
least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

¢. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the village believes is particularly
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financtal statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate celumns in
the fund financial statements.

The village reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - accounts for the village's ptimary operaling activities. it is used to account for
and report all financial resources except those accounted for and reported in another fund.

Fire and Ambulance Special revenue fund - accounts for resources legally restricted or
committed to supporting expenditures for fire and ambulance servicss.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

B. GOVEANMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
Fund Fipancial Statements (cont.)
The city repoits the following major goveramental funds: (cont.)

Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assignad to expenditure for the payment of general long-term debt principal,
interest, and related costs, other than TilJ or enterprise debi.

Tax Incremental District (TID} No. 3 Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, commitied, or assigned to expenditures outlined in the
TID project plan.

The village reports the following major enterprise funds:

Whater Utility - accounts for operations of the water system
Sewer Utility - accounts for operations of the sewer system

The village reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenues Funds - used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expanditures for specified purposes {(other than debt
service or capital projects).

Library Recycling
Revolving Loan Park Land Site
Impact Fee Stormwater

Capital Projects Funds - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.

Capital Equipment 2010 GO Bond
Library Building 2008 GO Bond
Capitat Projects Fund 2010 Taxable GO Note (BAB)

In addition, the village reporis the following fund types:

Privato-purpose trust funds are used to account for and report any trust arrangement not properly reported
in & pension trust fund under which pringipal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

Library Trust Fund
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont.)
Fund Financial Statementis (cont.)

Agency funds are used to account for and report assets held by the village in a trustee capacily or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, andfor other governmental units.

Tax Escrow Fund
C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes
are recognized as revenuss in the year for which they are levied. Taxes receivable for the following year
are recorded as receivables and unearned revenue. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibiiity requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded
as revenue when earned. Unbilled receivables are recorded as revenues when services are provided,

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements, Exceptions to this general rule are charges batween the village's water and sewer and various
other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions coneerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are repotted using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current perlod. For this purpose, the village considers revenues 1o be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt,
claims, judgments, compensated absences, and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund
liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred revenues. They are recognized
as revenues in the succeeding year when setvices financed by the levy are being provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the village is entitled the
resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the village which are not available are
recorded as recelvables and defeired revenues. Amounts recelved prior to the entitiernent period are also
. recorded as deferred revenues.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION {cont.)
Fund Financial Statements {cont.)

Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and available as current
assets, Annual installments due in fulure years are refiected as receivables and deferred revenues, At
December 31, 2012, thers were $504,324 of unrecordad deferred assessments which are not recorded as
receivables because collection is subject to certain events occurring in the future. No formal repayment
schedule has been established.

Revenues susceplible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for services,
special assessments and interest. Other gensral revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees,
recreation fees, and miscellansous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable
and available under the criteria described above.

The village reports deferred revenues on its governmaental funds balance shee!. Deferred revenues arise
from taxes levied in the current year which are for subsequent year's operations, For governmental fund
financlal statements, deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not mest both the
"measurable” and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise
when resources are received before the village has a legal clalim to them, as when grant monies are
received prior 1o the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. [n subsequent periods, when both revenue
recognition criteria are met, or when the village has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred
revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements {other than agency funds} are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as described previously in
this note. Agency funds follow the accrual basis of accounting, and do not have a measurement focus.

The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating itemns. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprielary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water and sewer funds are charges to customaers for sales and services. Special assessments are
recorded as receivables and contribution revenue when levied. Operating expenses for proprietary funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits
could differ from those astimates.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY
1. Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the village considers all highly liquid invesiments with an
initial maturity of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents.

Investment of village funds is restricted by Wisconsin state statutes. Available investrents are limited to:

a.  Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or
less.

b.  Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, a local professional
baseball park district, a local professional football stadium district, a local cultural aris district, the
Universily of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority, or the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.

¢. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government,
d. The local government investment pool.

e.  Any securily maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating
category of a nationally recognized rating agency.

f. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, subject to
various conditions and investment options.

g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions,

Investment of most trust funds including cemetery perpetual care funds, is regulated by Chapter 881 of
the Wisconsin Statutes. investment of library trust funds is regulated by Chapter 112. Those sections give
broad authority to use such funds to acquire various kinds of investments including stocks, bonds and
debentures,
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. Assers, LiaBILITIES, AND NET Position oR EQUITY (cont.)
1. Deposits and Investmenis (cont.)

The village has adopted an invesiment policy. That policy foliows the state statute for allowable
investments and contains the following additional guidelines for allowable investments. Banking services
will be provided by the official depositories approved annually by the Village Board. Prohibited
investments include derivative type investments such as collateralized morigage obligations, strips,
floaters, etc. Village funds may only be placed in FDIC insured depository institutions, Deposits at
individual depository institutions above $650,000 must be collateralized as to principal and interest with
securities that are obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies that are fully guaranteed by the U.S,
Government or collateralized as to principal and interest with promissory notes from borrowers of
depository institutions that maintain a rating from Standard & Poor's of BBB or BBB- or a rating from
Moody's of Baa. Deposits above $650,000 with depository institutions that maintain a rating from
Standard & Poor's of AAA, AA or A or a rating from Moody's of Aaa, Aa or A are not required to be
collateralized. Investments shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss and balance the effect of
interest rate changes affecting different types of securities. Time deposits may not exceed 3 vears and
debt that is not guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Federal Government or its Agencies or a
Wisconsin municipality must have a maturity not more than 7 years. Reserve funds may be invested in
securities exceeding 7 years if the maturity of such invesiments coincides with the expected use of these
funds and is approved by the Finance Committee.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No
investments are reporied at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are
recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in Investment Income. Investment incoma
on commingled Investments of municipal accounting funds is allocated based on average balances. The
ditference between the bank statement balance and carrying value is due to outstanding checks and/or
depaosits in transit.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool {(LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the village s share of the
LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the amount as reported in these statements.

See Note lIL. A. for further information.
2. Recelvables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition to
property taxes for the village, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as
well as the local school district, Phantom Lakes Management district, and technical college district. Taxes
for all state and local governmental units bilfed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as
receivables and due to other taxing units on the accompanying agency fund stalement of fiduciary net
position,
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(cont.)

D. AssSEeTs, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (Cont.)
2. Recelvables (cont.)

Properly tax calendar - 2012 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2012
Tax bills mailad December 2012
Payment in full, or ' January 31, 2013
First installment due January 31, 2013
Second installment due April 30, 2013
Third installment due July 31, 2013
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2013
Tax sale - 2012 delinquent real estate taxes QOclober 2015

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Delinquent real
estate taxes as of July 31 are paid in fult by the county, which assumes the collection thereof. No provision
for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for the water and sewer uiiliiies because they have
the right by law to place substantially all delingquent bills on the tax roll, and cther delinguent bills are
generally not significant,

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds, Short-term interfund loans are reported as "due to and from other funds.” Long-term
interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to olher funds.” Interfund
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activitias are eliminated in the statement of
net position, Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as internal balances.

3. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-end
inventory was not significant. Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and/or for
operation and maintenance work. They are not for resale.  They are valued at cost based on weighted
average, and charged to construction and/or operation and maintenance expense when used.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recordad as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Assels

Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these resiricted asssts are so
classified. The excess of restricied assets over current liabilities payable from restricted assets will be
used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if generated from earnings, is shown as
restricted net position.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. Assers, LiaBILITIES, AND NET PosITioN OR EQuiTy (cont.)
8, Capital Assels
Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than
$2,500 for general capital assets and $2,500 for infrastructure asssts, and an estimated useful life in
excess of 1 year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual
amounts are unavailable, Donated capltal assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. '

Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded at original cost,
which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction
when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense
incurred during construction netted against any interest revenue from temporary investment of borrowed
fund proceeds. No interest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and belterments
relating fo retiternent units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property replaced, retired or otherwise
disposed of, is deductad from plant accounts and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation and amortization of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated axpense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation and amortization reflected in the statement of net
posttion. Depreciation and amortization Is provided over the assels' estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings 50 Years
Land Improvements 20-60 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-25 Years
Utility System 3-77 Years
Infrastruciure 20-50 Years
intangibles 10 Years
Library Gollection 5-10 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental! fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements.

6. Other Assels

in governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as expenditures in the current period. For the
government-wide and the propristary fund type financial statements, debt issuance costs are deferred and
amortized over the term of the debt issue,
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. Assers, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {cont.)
7. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements,

All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a resuilt of employee resignations and retiraments, and are payable with
expendable rescurces.

The village does not accrue accumulated vacation or sick leave, but rather expsnses these costs as paid.
Vagcation time is not cumulative from year to year. Accumulated sick leave benefits are paid upon
retirement or termination if the employee has at least 20 years of service with the village. Employees may
accumulate a maximum of 120 days of sick [eave.

Payments for vacation and sick leave will bs made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Accumulated vacation and sick leave liabilities at December 31, 2012, are determined on the basis of
current salary rates and include salary related payments.

8. Long-Term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations consist primarily of notes and
bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

L ong-term obligations for governmental funds are hot reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debts (plus any premiums) are reported as other financing sources and
payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting in proprietary funds is the
same as it is in the government-wide statements.

For the government-wide statements and propristary fund statements, bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the Issue using the straight-line method. Gains or losses on prior
refundings are amortized over the remaining fife of the old debt, or the life of the new debt, whichever is
shorter. The balance at year end for both premiums/discounts and gainsflosses, as applicable, is shown
as an increase or decrease in the llability section of the statement of net position.

The village has approved the issuance of industrial revenue bonds (IRB) for the benefit of private
business enterprises. IRB's are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on the assoclated projects,
and do not constitute indebtedness of the village. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements, At year end, the aggregate principal amount for the 2004 series
outstanding could not be determined; however, their original issue amounts totaled $7,175,000.
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. Assers, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY {cont.)
9. Claims and Judgmenis

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabiiities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and judgments are
only reparted in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are recorded in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabllities are incurred.
There were no significant claims or judgments at year end.

10. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspsnt
debt proceeds) of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net positions that do not meet the definitions of “restricted" or
"net investiment in capiltal assets.”

The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type activities
column, but tinanced by the debt of the governmental activities column, The amount is a reduction of “net
investment in capital assets", and an increase in "unrestricted” net position, shown only in the total
column. A reconciliation of this adjustment is as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Adjustment Total

Net invesiment in capital assets § 4,232,266 $ 18,674,618 $ (1,031,824) $ 21,875,060
Unrestricted 1,544,017 1,963,109 1,031,824 4,528,950

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the village's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are neesded.
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION 0R EQUITY {cont.)
10. Equity Classifications (cont.)
Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 54 - Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
the village classifies governmental fund balance as follows:

a. Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are
not in spendable form or because legal or contractual requirements require them to be
maintained intact.

b. Restricted - Consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contribuiors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢. Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government tirough formal action of the highest levet of decision
making authority. Fund balance amounts are committed through a formal action {resolution) of
the village. This formal action must ocour prior to the end of the reporting period, but the amaount
of the commitment, which will be subject to the constraints, may be determined in the
subsequent pericd. Any changes {o the constraints imposed require the same formal action of
the village that originally created the commitment.

d. Assigned - Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intendad to be used for specific
purposes that are not considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be assigned
through the following; 1} The village has adopted a financial policy authorizing the Village
Administrator to assign amounts for a specific purpose. 2) All remaining positive spendable
amounts in governmental funds, other than the general fund, that are neither restricted nor
committed. Assignimants may take place after the end of the reporting period.

e. Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been
classified within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also
include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned for those purposes.

Proprietary fund squity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

The village considers restricted amounts to be spent tirst when both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available unless there are legal documents / contracts that prohibit doing this, such as in grant
agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the village would first use committed, then
assigned and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)
10. Equity Classifications {cont.)
Fund Statements (cont.)

The village has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain a working capital fund of
$750,000. The balance at year end was $750,000 and is included in unassigned general fund batance.

Ses Note I, G. for further information.

NOTE Il - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the same basis
of accounting for each fund as described in Note |, C.

The budgeted amounts presented include any amendments made. The village may authorize transfers of
budgeted amounts within departments. Transfers between depariments and changes to the overall budget
must be approved by a two-thirds board action.

Appropriations lapse at year end unfess specifically carried over. There were no carryovers to the following
year. Budgets are adopted at the fund level of expenditure,

B. Excess EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Excess
Budgsted Actual Expenditures Qver
Funds Expenditures Expenditures Budget
Library Fund $ 857,159 § 871,676 % 14,517
20092 GO Bond Fund 397,396 408,728 11,332

The village controls expenditures at the department level. Some individual departments experienced
expenditures which exceeded appropriations. The detail of those items can be found in the village's year-
end budget to actual report. The excess expanditures of the Library Fund were financed by contribution
revenue that was not budgeted.
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NOTE Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The village's deposits and investments at year end were comprised of the following:

Carrying Statement
Value Balances Associated Risks

Deposits $ 5,872,867 $ 5,944,106 Custodial Credi Risk
LGP 12,169,755 12,169,755 Credit Risk
Petty cash 200 - N/A

Total Deposits and Investments $ 18042822 $ 18,113,861
Heconclliation to financial statements
Per statement of net position

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 8,262,462

Restricted cash and investments 3,588,006
Per statement of net position- fiduciary
funds

Private Purpose Trust 31,326

Agency Fund 6,161,028

Total Deposits and Investments $ 18042822

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts), $250,000 for interest-bearing demand deposit accounts, and
uniimited amounts for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts through December 31, 2012, On January
1, 2013, the temporary unlimited coverage for noninterest bearing transaction accounts expired.
Therefore, demand deposit accounts (interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing) are insured for a total of
$250,000 beginning January 1, 2013. In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in
which the government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts.

Bank accounis are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of $400,000.

However, due to the relatively small size of the Guarantee Fund in relationship to the total deposits
covered and other legal implications, recovery of material principal losses may not be significant to
individual municipalities. This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the village's deposits may
not be returned to the village.
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NOTE Ill - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

A. DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)
Custodial Credit Risk (cont.)
Deposits (cont.) |
The village doses not have any deposits exposed to custodial credit risk.
Investments

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
village will not be able to recover the value of its invesiments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party.

The village does not have any investments exposed to custodial credit risk.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or cther counterparty to an investment will not fuiiill its obligations.
The village held investments in the following external pools which are not rated:
LGIP
See Note LD.1. for further information on deposit and investment policies.
B, RECEIVABLES

All of the receivables on the balance sheet are expected to be collected within one year and are reported
net of an alfowance for doubiful accounts of $111,407.
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NOTE lli - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

B. RECEIVABLES (cont.)

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Property taxes levied for the
subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also deter revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been recaived,
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned Totals
Properly taxes receivable for subsequent year  $ - § 5,460,766 $ 5,489,766
Ambulance receivable 120,148 - 120,148
Special assessments not yet dus 1,766,967 - 1,766,967
Special assesments principal on tax roll 208,207 - 206,207
Special assessments interest on tax roll 90,718 - 90,718
Other - 464 464
interest subsidy 2,886 - 2,886
Teta!l Deferred/Unearned Revenue for
Governmental Funds S; 2,186.926 $ 5,470@__1_0' $ 7,657.156

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS
The following represent the balances of the restricted assets:
Long-Term Debt Accounts

Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the
next twelve months,

Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in
the redemption account,

Equipment Replacement Accoumt

The sewer ulility established an equipment replacement account to be used for significant mechanical
equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Impact Fee Account

The village has received impact fees which must be spent in accordance with the local ordinance and
state statutes. Any uinspent funds must be rsfunded to the current property owner.
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NOTE Ifl - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

C. REsTRicTED ASSETS (comt.)

Fallowing is a list of restricted assets at December 31, 2012:

Restricted
Assels
Water redempticn account- current 3 57,368
Water reserve account 466,359
Sewer redemption account- current 58,534
Sewer reserve account 738,778
Equipment replacement account 782,818
Impact fee account 1,484,148
Total 3 3588006

D. CapiTAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Delstions Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being
depreciatedfamortized
Land $ 1,109,628 $ - % - 5 1,102,628
Construction in progress 73,568 687,706 700,116 61,158
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated/ Amortized 1,183,196 687,708 700,116 1,170,786
Capital assets being depreciated/
amortized
Land improvements 574,146 520,524 - 1,103,670
Buildings 10,736,765 122,129 34,253 10,824,641
Machinery and equipment 3,548,802 267,982 59,682 3,757,102
Roads 16,851,236 95,385 - 16,946,620
Storm sewers 2,151,816 - - 2,151,816
Library collection 1,138,483 105,219 508,106 735,596
Software 51,171 - - 51,171
Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated/ Amortized 35,052,418 1,120,239 602,041 35,670,616

Total Capital Assets 36,235,614 1,807,945 1,302,157 36,741,402

Page 36




VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE Ill - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(cont.)

D. CARITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Governmental Activities {cont.)

Less: Accumulated depreciation/
amortization for
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Roads
Storm sewers
Library collection
Software

Total Accumulated Depreciation/

Amortization

Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated/ Amortized

Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation/

Amortization

Depreciation/amortization expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Pubtic safety

Fublic works, which includes the depreciation of infrastructure

Culture, recreation and education

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation/Amortization Expense

Buginess-type Activities

Sewer
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and land rights
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assels Not Being
Depreciated

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Celetions Balance
$ (85,095) § {30,960} $ - 3 (116,955)
(1,349,953) (216,709} 6,850 (1,559,812)
(1,859,321) {248,544} 59,682 (2,048,183)
(4,806,939) {598,619) - (5,405,5658)
{293,429) (44,484} - {337,913)
(398,737) {456,393) 508,106 (347,024)
{7.678) _{6,117) - (12,793)
{8,802,050) {1,600,826) 574,638 {9.828,238)
26,250,368 {480,587) 27,403 25,742,378
$ 27433564 % 207,119 $ 727519 $ 26,913,164
$ 38,048
253,653
687,941
621,184
$ 1,600,826
Beginning Ending
Balance Adjustments Additions Deletions Balance
15,897 $ - - 8 15,897
542 883 249777 744,666 48,004
558,790 249,777 744,666 63,901
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NOTE Ili - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

D. CApPiTaL AsSETS {cont.)

BusIness-type Activities {cont.)

Beginning Ending
Balance Adjustments Additions Deletions Balance
Sewar {cont.)
Capilal asssets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements $ 20,222,213 & - % 759258 § 425184 $ 20,556,287
Machinery and equipment 1,668,686 - 45,706 - 1,714,302
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated _ 21,890,809 - 804,964 425,184 22,270,589
Total Capltal Assets 22,449,599 - 1,064,741 1,169,850 22,334,490
Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Bulldings and improvements (6,783,166} - (475,022} 425,184 (6,833,004)
Machinery and equipment (871,191} - {156,400) - (1,027,591)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (7,654,357} - (631.422) 425,184 (7,860,695)
Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 14,236,452 - 173,542 - 14,409,994
Net Sewer Capital Assets $ 14795242 § - 423319 $ 744,666 S 14.473.895
Bsginning Ending
Balance Adjustments Additions Deletions Balance
Water
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 556,467 $ - 8 - § - $  Bb5B 467
Gonstruction in progress 510,752 (46,181) 53,613 77,567 440,617
Total Capitat Assets Not Being
Depreciated 1,067,219 {46,181) 53,513 77,567 996,984
Capital asseis being depreciated
Buildings and improvements $ 17,586,168 3% - %5 104214 % 47.014 % 17,643,368
Machinery and equipment 1,981,778 - 83,961 108,690 1,857,049
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 19,667,946 - 188,175 155,704 19,600,417
Tolal Capital Assets 20,635,165 (46.,181) 241,688 233,271 20,697,401
Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements {3,008,251) - {304,391) 47,014 (3,265,628)
Machinery and equipment {1,097,977) - (134,360) 108,690 (1,123,647)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (4,106,228) - (438,751) 165,704 (4,389,275)

Net Gapilat Assels Being
Depreciated 15,461,718 - {250,578) - 15,211,142

Net Water Capital Assets ~ $. 16528937 $  (46.181) $ (197.063) § 77567 $ 16,208,126

Business-type Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation $ 31,324,179 § 226266 § 822293 $ 30,682,001
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NOTE lll - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Depreciationfamortization expense was charged to functions as follows:

Business-type Activities
Sewer
Water

Total Business-type Activities Depreciation Expense

$ 655552
403,427

1,058,979

Depreciation expense does not agree 1o the increases in accumulated depreciation due to joint metering,

salvage and cost of removal.

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Receivables/Payables

The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on pooled cash

and investment accounts:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Water Utility § 31,268
General Fund Sewer Utility 582
General Fund Fire/Ambulance 33,781
General Fund Capital Projects 1,856
General Fund Library o1
General Fund Recycling 18,606
General Fund Debt Service Fund 208
General Fund Stormwater Fund 27,048
Fire and Ambulance Capital Equipment 5,004

Tax Incremental District No. 3
Stormwater Fund 47,500
2010 Taxable GO Note {BAB)
Fund 2009 GO Bond Fund 1,432
Water Utifity Sewer Ultility 56,389
Sewer Utility Water Utility 18,505

Tax Incremental District No. 3
Fund

General Fund

Total - Fund Financial Statements

Less: Fund eliminations

Total Internat Balances - Government-Wide Statement of

Net Position

13,016

255,374
(228,524)

3 31,850
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NOTE Ill - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS {cont.)

Interfund Receivables/Payables (cont.)

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 3 31,850
Business-type Activities Governmental Aclivities -

Total Government-Wide Financial Statements 31,850

All amounts are due within one year.

The principal purpose of these interfunds is the collection of special charges on the tax roll and the
allocation of commingled cash and investment balances. All remaining balances resulted from the time lag
between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures oceur,
(2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and {3) payments between funds are made,

For the statement of net position, intetfund balances which are owed within the governmental activities or

business-type activilles are netted and eliminated.
Transfers

The lollowing is a schedule of interfund transfers:

Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose
General Fund Water Utility $ 348,049 Payment in lisu of taxes
General Fund Sanitary Sewer Utility 7,147 Payment in fieu of taxes

Fire/Ambutance Settlement
Fire and Ambulance Fund General Fund 100,555  Costs
Tax Incremental District Transfer for stormwater
Storm Water Fund No. 3 Fund 47,500  projects
2010 Taxable GO Note Transfer for final retainage
Fund 2009 GO Bond Fund 1,432  payment
Capital Equipment Fund  General Fund 165,500 Transfer for capital equipment
Transfer for debt service
Sewer Utility ' Water Utllity 41,989  payment

Total - Fund Financial Statements

Less: Fund eliminations

Tolal Transfers - Government-Wide Statement
of Activities

712,182

(356,086)

$ 355196

Page 40




VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE Ill - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(cont.)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (conl.)

Transfers {cont.)

Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 355,198
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities -

Total Government-wids Financial Statements 355,196

Generally, transfers are used to (1} move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund that the
budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the
receipts to the debt service fund, and (3} use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

For the staiement of activitles, interfund transfers within the governmental activities or business-type

activities are netied and sliminated.

F. LoNG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2012, was as follows:

Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable
General obfigation debt $ 28835987 $ 3,620,000 $ 6363555 & 26002432 § 1,883,774
Add/(Subtract) Deferred
Amounts For
(Discounts)/Premlums 195,583 81,798 24,228 253,153 -
Refundings -
Galns/{Losses) {178,894} - {62,153) {116,741) -
Sub-totals 28,852,676 3,701,798 6,325,630 26,228,844 1,683,774
Other Liabilities
Compensated absances 596,646 24,457 18,928 602,175 36,131
Due to other governments 115,000 - - 115,600 -
Total Other Liabilifles 711,646 24 457 18,928 7,175 36,131
Tolal Governmental
Uebiies O™ s oose1gre §  a7aeess §  e34sss § 26946019 § 1719905
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NOTE Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LonG-Team OBLIGATIONS (cont.)

Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Year
Business-type Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable
General obligation debt $ 3,706,162 § - 8 267,934 §& 3438218 § 285,528
Revenue bonds 10,782,626 - 572,747 10,209,879 573,373
Add/{Subtract) Deferred
Amounts For
{Discounts)/Premiums 187,707 - 11,143 126,564
Refundings -
Galnsf{Losses) (351,830) - (35,479 {316,351) -
Sub-totals 14,274,655 - 816,345 13,458,310 868,901
Other Liabilities
Compensated absences 78,688 2,165 19,830 60,023 10,153
Total Other Liabfiities 78,688 2,165 15,930 60,923 10,163
Total Business-typs
Activitles Long-Temn
Liabilitiss $_14353343 § 2,165 $ 836275 $ 13519233 § 879054

In accordance with Wisconsin Stalutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the village may not
exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable properly within the village's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of
December 31, 2012, was $36,493,186. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was
$29,530,850.

General Obligation Debt

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the village, Notes
and bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies or tax increments
accumulated by the debt service fund.
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NOTE jli - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

F, LoNG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {cont.)

General Obligation Debt (cont.)

Governmental Activities

Balance
Date of Final Interest Original December 31,
General Obligation Debt Issue Maturity Rates indebtedness 2012
Refunding bonds 2/1/2007 10/1/2018 4.0% $ 4,460,000 $ 3,960,000
Refunding bonds 3/8/2010 12/1/2021 3.0-3.5% 3,240,000 3,240,000
Promissory notes 8/1/2005 8/1/2015 3.0-4.0% 1,550,000 850,000
Promissory notes 5/15/2006 10/1/2015  3.75-4,25% 2,825,000 1,050,000
Promissory notes
(15.66% TID) 4/1/2007 10/1/2017 4.0% 4,075,000 2,975,000
Promissory notes 3/1/2008 9M1/2018  2.75-3.875% 2,580,000 1,580,000
1.125-
Promissory notas (BAB)  3/18/2010 12/1/2019 4.625% 2,798,839 2,480,789
Promissory notes 12/1/2040 12/1/2019 2.0-3.6% 4,550,000 4,375,000
Refunding Promissory
Notes (TID) 11/1/2011 10/1/2021 1.0-3.0% 2,058,000 1,961,643
GO Refunding Bonds
(TID #3) 11112 10/1/26 1.0-2.5% 3,620,000 3.820,000
Total Governmental Activities - General Obligation Debt $ 26,002,432
Business-type Activities Balance
Date of Final Interest Original December 31,
General Obligation Debt Issue Maturity Rates Indebtedness 2012
Water system bonds 11/1/1999 5/1/2018 2.64% § 1,886442 § 700,648
Water system
promissory notes 1.125-
(BAB) 3/18/2010 12/1/2018 4.625% 884,400 783,900
Water Refunding
Promissary notes 11/1/2011 10172021 1.0-3.0% 183,750 199,942
Sewer system
promissory notes 1.125-
{BAB) 3/18/2010Q 12172019 4.625% 496,761 440,312
Sewer Refunding
Promissory Notes 11/1/2011 10/1/2021 1.0-3.0% 1,433,250 1,313,416

Total Business-type Activities - General Obligation Debt

$ 3438218
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE lil - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LownG-TErM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)
General Obligation Debt (cont.)

Debt sarvice requirements to maturily are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Aclivities
General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt
Years Principal Interest Principal interest
2013 $ 1,683,774 % 860,933 $ 295,528 § 105,291
2014 2,605,513 808,812 306,674 98,706
2015 2,003,774 720,801 301,376 81,010
2016 2,747,253 611,090 320,937 83,091
2017 3,336,366 514,669 334,945 73,851
2018-2022 11,675,750 1,052,037 1,878,758 165,525
2023-2026 1,150,002 70,625 - -
Totals § 26092432 $§ 4638967 $  3,438218 3 617,474

Revenue Debt

Business-type activities revenue bonds are payable only from revenues derived from the operation of the
water and sanitary sewer utilities.

The village has pledged future revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $12.2 million in
water and sewer reventie bonds issued in various years. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for
the variety of water and sewer projects. The bonds are payable solely from water and sewer revenues
and are payable through 2026. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to
require 50% of net revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is
$13,678,929. Principal and interest pald for the current year and total customer net revenues were
$1,009,575 and $1,963,148, respectively.

Revenue debt payable at December 31, 2012, consists of the following:

Business-type Activities Revenue Debt

Balance
Date of Final Interest Original December 31,
Issueg Maturity Raltes Indebtedness 2012
Sewer Utility
Revenue Bonds- Sewer 411/2007  12/1/2024 4.00-450% $ 3527875 $ 2,812,548
Hevenue Bonds- Sewer 1/1/2008  12/1/2026 4.00-4.75% 2,281,280 1,924,830

Revenue Bonds- Sewer 12012010  12/1/2021 2.00-4.625% 1,376,948 1,376,948

Total Sewer Utility 6,114,326
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NOTE il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LoNG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {cont.)
Revenue Debt (cont.)

Business-type Activities Revenue Debt {cont.)

Water Utility
Revenue Bonds- Water 4/29/2002  5/1/2022 2.75% 627,365 264,879
Revenue Bonds- Water 411/2007  12/1/2024  4.00-4,50% 1,897,125 1,512,452
Revenue Bonds- Water 1/1/2008  12/1/2026  4.00-4,75% 918,720 775,170

Revenue Bonds- Water 12/1/2010  12/1/2021 2.00-4.625% 1,543,052

__ 1,543,052

Total Water Utility 4,095,653

Total Business-type Activities Revenue Debt ‘ 10,209,879

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Business-lype Activities
Ravenue Debi

Years Principal interest
2013 $ 573,373 § 413,069
2014 584,015 394,917
2015 624,676 375,668
2016 625,354 354,104
2017 _ 626,052 331,897
2018-2022 3,861,400 1,272,671
2023-2027 3,825,000 326,724
Totals $ 10200879 $ 3,469,050

Other Debt Information

Estimated payments of compsnsated absences are not included in the debt service requirement
schedules. The compensated absences liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated
primarily by the general fund.

There are a number of limitations and restriclions contained in the various bond indentures and loan
agreements. The village believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions,
including federal arbitrage regulations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

NOTE lil - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

F. LoNG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)
Current Refunding

On 11/1/2012, the village issued $3,620,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of
2.04% to current refund $3,620,000 of outstanding notes with an average interest rate of 3.75%. The net
procesds of $3,626,285 (after payment of $75,513 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance
cosls plus $81,798 premium on the debt issued) plus an additional $1,059,965 of T1D sinking fund monies
were used to prepay the outstanding debt service requirements on the old bonds.

The cash flow requirements on the refunded bonds and notes prior to the current refunding was
$4,686,250 from 2012 through 2012. The cash flow requirements on the 2012 refunding bonds are
$5,265,122 from 2013 through 2026. The current refunding resulted in an economic loss (difference
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $7,914,

G. NET PosrioN/FUND BALANCES

Net position reported on the government wide statement of net position at December 31, 2012, includes
the following:

Governmental Activities

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Land $ 1,109,628
Construction in progress 61,168
Other capltal assets, net of accumulated depreciation 25,742,378
Less: Long-term debt cutstanding (26,228,844)
Pius: Unspant capital related debt proceeds : 2,516,122
Plus: Noncapital debt procesds 1,031,824
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets 4232766

Restricted
Debt service- general 2,762,787
Debt service- tax incremental financing 720,949
Impact fees 1,477,962
Revolving loans 86,856
Library purposes 268,812
Total Restricted 5,307,366
Unrestricted 1,644,017
Total Governmental Activities Net Position $ 11,083,649
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NOTE il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANGES (cont.)
Governmental Funds

Governmental fund balances reparted on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2012, include the
following:

Tax
Fire and Incremental
Ambulance Debt Service  District No. 3 Nonmajor
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Totals
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaid fems $ 82,003 $ 11,018 & - 8 135 § 15878 % 109,035
Restricted for:
Cebt service - - 825,792 759,343 - 1,586,135
Library - - - . 258,812 258,812
Impact fess - - - - 1,477,962 1,477,962
Revolving loans - - - - 86,856 86,856
Library - - - - - -
Committed to:
Fire and ambulance - 7,448 - - . 7,448
Profects - - - - 2,699,220 2,699,220
RAecyeling - - - - 82,131 82,131
Stormwater - - - - 22,812 22812
Park Land Bite - - - 208,548 209,548
Funding accried sick pay 207,820 - - - - 207,829
Fire expenditures 111,344 - - . - 111,344
Ambulance expenditures 24,495 - - - - 24,495
Cther expenditures 400,768 - - - - 400,768
Unassigned: 1,254,351 - - - - 1,254,351
Total Fund Balances $ 2080790 $ 8466 3 625702 §  VB0AT8 § 4853980 $ 8537746
Business-type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Land $ 572,364
Construction in progress 488,521
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 29,621,136
Less: Long-term debt outstanding (13,458,310)
Plus: Noncapital debt proceeds 1,205,137
Plus: Unamottized issuance costs 245770
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets 18,674,618
Restricted
Debt service 80,735
Equipment replacement 782,819
Total Restricted 863,554
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NOTE Il - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

G. NET PosiTiON/FUND BALANCES {cont.)

Business-type Activities {cont.)

Unrestricted 1,953,109
Total Business-type Activities Net Position $ _ 21491,281

NOTE IV - OTHER INFORMATION

A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Al eligible village employess participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System {(WRS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed
by a participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work over 600 hours a year and
expacted to be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the
WRS. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and
expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employes's date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.

Prior to June 29, 2011, covered employees in the General category were required by statute to contribute
6.5% of their salary (3.9% for Execulives and Elected Officials, 5.8% for Protective Occupations with
Sacial Security, and 4.8% for Protective Occupations without Social Security) to the plan. Employers
could make these contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers were required to
contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary 1o the fund the remaining projected cost of fulure
benefits.

Eifective the first day of the first pay pericd on or after June 29, 2011 the employes required contribution
was change to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employses,
and Executives and Elected Officials, Required contributions for protective contributions are the same as
general employees. Employers are required to coniribute the remainder of the actuarially determined
contribution rate. The employer may not pay the smployee required contribution unless provided for by an
existing collective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates for December 31, 2012 are;

Employee Employer

General 5.9% 5.9%
Executives and Elected Officials 7.05% 7.05%
Protective with Social Security 5.9% 9.0%
Protective without Social Security 5.9% 11.3%
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NOTE IV - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)

A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)

The payroll for village employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
$3,052,451; the employer's total payroll was $3,346,117. The total required contribution for the year ended
December 31, 2012 was $424,808 or 13.9% of covered payroll. Of this amount, 100% was contributed for
the current year. Total contributions for the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $407,886
and $387,432, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employeos with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25
years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employess) and receive actuatially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. Final
average earnings is the average of the employee's three highest years earnings. Employees terminating
covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit, For employses
beginning participation on or after January 1, 1890, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24,
1988, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibiiity for a retirement annuity. Participants
employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2011 are immediately vested.
Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 must have five years of creditable
service to be vested.

The System also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and the amount of all
benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The System issues an annual financial
report which may be obtained by writing to the Departiment of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931,
Madison, W} 53707-7931.

As of December 31, 2012 there was no pension related debt for the village.
B. Risk MANAGEMENT

The village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. All of these risks are
covered through the purchase of commarcial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not
exceeded the commercial coverage in any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in
coverage compared to the prior year. ‘

C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the village is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the
village attorney that the likefihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the village's financial position or results of operations.
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NOTE IV - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)

C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.)

The village has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subiect to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency for
expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants, Management believes such disallowances, if any,
would be immaterial.

Funding for the operating budget of the village comes from many soutces, including property taxes, grants
and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits, and other miscellansous revenues.
The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs which benefit the village. Those aid
and grant programs are dependent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin governor and
legislature, through their budget processes. The State of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget
problems, and is considering numerous alternatives including reducing aid to local governments, Any
changes made by the State to funding or sligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact on
the future operating results of the village.

D. EFFecT oF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT-PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved GASB Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus; Statement No. 65, llems Previously Reporied as Assels and
Liabilities; Statement No. 68, Technical Corrections - 2012 - an amendment of GASB Statemenis No. 10
and No. 62; Statement No. 87, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statemoent
No. 25; and Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Pensions - an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. Application of these standards may restate portions of these financiai
statements,

E. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The village provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a defined contribution plan
known as the Village of Mukwonago Pension Trust through ICMA-RC who administers the plan.

In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts coniributed to the Plan plus investment
earnings. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon becoming eligible for the Wisconsin
Retlrament Systern (WRS). This plan is to give eligible employess an additional two and one-half
percentage towards retirements, above what the Village contributes to WRS. In addition, Village
employees have an opticn to contribute to this plan from each payroll period. For the year ended
December 31, 2012 the total amount contributed was $85,538. Of this amount, $42,377 was contributed
by the employer and $43,161 was conlributed by the employee. Total contributions for the years ending
December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $84,879 and $80,968, respectively. The employet's contribution for
sach year was equal to the reguired amount,
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
[N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Budgeled Amounts Variance with
Qriginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Teaxes 3 2,147,667 % 2,147,667 $ 2,132,800 § {14,867)
Intergovernmental 968,499 968,499 980,259 11,760
Licenses and permits 258,385 258,385 292,924 34,539
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 151,500 151,500 125,034 (26,466)
Public charges for services 22,100 22,100 26,409 4,309
Interdepartmental charges for services 130,590 130,590 134,569 3,979
Investment Income 13,203 13,203 B,668 {4,535)
Other revenues 73,850 73,850 78,684 4,734
Total Revenues 3,765,794 3,765,794 3,770,247 13,453
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 638,203 701,730 718,878 (17,148)
Public safety 2,267,417 2,275,061 2,286,011 {10,950}
Public works 812,882 730,683 711,165 19,618
Health and sanitation 2,900 2,725 2,725 -
Culture, recreation and education 138,658 151,889 151,890 {1)
Conservation and development 105,371 153,433 116,051 37,382
Capital Outiay - - 100 {100)
Total Expenditures 3,965,521 4,015,521 3,086,820 28,701
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures {199,727) (249,727) (207,573) 42,154
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 324,480 324,480 355,196 30,716
Transfers out (165,500} (266,055) (232,328) 33,727
Proceeds on the sale of capilal assets - - 500 500
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 168,980 58,425 123,368 64,943
Net Change in Fund Balance (40,747) {191,302} (84,205) 107,097
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 2,164,995 2,164,085 2,164,995 -
FUND BALANCE - END CF YEAR & 2,124,248 § 1,973,603 § 2,080,780 § 107,097

Bee independent auditors’ reporl and ascompanying notes 1o required supplementary information.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FIRE AND AMBULANCE FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Criginal Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes $ 93,430 $% 93,430 § 93,430 § -
Public charges for services 801,921 801,821 638,792 {163,129)
intergovernmental Grants/Ald 5,400 5,400 6,047 647
Intergovernmental charges for services 93,430 193,985 180,260 {33,725)
Investment income 1,520 1,520 451 {1,069)
Miscellansous - 1,200 1,825 625
Total Revenues 995,701 1,007,456 900,805 {196,651)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public: safety 981,301 999,269 059,761 39,508
Capital Outlay - 8,811 6,811 -
Total Expenditures 991,301 1,006,080 966,572 39,508
Excess {deficiency} of revenues
over (under) expenditures 4,400 91,376 (65,767) (167,143}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - 100,555 100,555 -
Transfers out (5,400} {198,628) (33,727) 164,901
Sales of fixed assets 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,400) {97,073) 66,828 163,901
Net Change in Fund Balance - (5,697) 1,061 6,758
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 17,405 17,405 17,405 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 17,405 § 11,708 § 18466 % 6,758

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information. Page 52



VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and Is presented using generally
accepted accounting principles and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Excess expenditures over appropriations are as follows:

Final Budget Expenditures Excess
General Fund
General government $ 701,730 ¢ 718878 % 17,148
Public safety 2,275,061 2,286,011 10,250
Culture, recreation and education 151,889 151,890 1
Capital outly - 100 100

See independent auditors’ report.
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DETAILED SCHEDULE CF REVENUES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2012

TAXES
General properly taxes
Public accomodation {room) taxes
Interest and penalties on taxes

Total Taxes

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

State shared revenues
Exempt compuler aid

State aid - law enforcement improvements
State aid - general transportation alds
State aid - cullure, recreation, and education

Other stale payments
Other local payments

Total Intergovernmental

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Other reguiatory permits and fees
Liquor and malt beverage
Operators' licenses
Cigarette licenses
Electrical contractors licenses
Cable television franchise fess
Bicycle licenses
Dog and cat licenses
Nonbusiness licenses
Other parmits
Building permits
Elecirical permits
Plumblng permits
Occupancy permits
Zoning permits and feas
Plan review fees
Heating and air conditioning permits

Total Licenses and Permits

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Criginal Final Actual Final Budget
$ 2,123,667 § 2,123,667 $ 2,110,622 3% {(13,045)
9,000 9,000 5,990 (3,010)
15,000 15,000 16,188 1,188
2,147,667 2,147,667 2,132,800 (14,867}
313,999 313,990 312,114 (1,885)
12,100 12,100 10,824 (1,276}
19,000 19,000 34,044 15,044
586,600 586,500 586,503 3
23,550 23,550 26,962 3,412
13,350 13,350 9,812 (3,538)
968,499 968,498 980,259 11,760
400 400 435 35
12,600 12,600 11,668 {832)
4,725 4,725 5,625 900
1,160 1,100 1,200 100
3,500 3,500 4,765 1,265
100,000 100,000 106,147 6,147
60 60 60 -
3,225 3,225 3,933 708
3,675 3,675 3,350 {225)
9,800 9,800 17,267 7,467
51,500 51,500 62,683 11,183
20,000 20,000 15,919 {4,081)
12,000 12,000 17,085 5,085
6,500 6,500 8,311 1,811
4,000 4,000 8,810 4,810
14,000 14,000 13,651 (349)
11,500 11,500 12,015 515
258,385 258,385 292,924 34,539
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 202

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Criginal Final Actual Final Budgst
FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES
Court fines $ 141,000 § 141,000 $ 112416 $ {28,584)
Parking Violations 10,500 10,500 12,618 2,118
Total Fines, Forfeitures, and Penaities 151,600 151,500 125,034 (26,466)
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Publication fees 450 450 425 (25)
Photocoples 2,600 2,600 5,798 3,198
Treasurer's fees 4,000 4,000 8,498 4,498
Law enforcement fees 10,500 10,500 9,084 {1,436)
Fire protection fees 800 800 2,274 1,474
Other public charges for services 3,750 3.750 350 (3400)
Total Public Charges for Services 22,100 22,100 26,409 4,309
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Local - election fees 2,500 2,500 5,164 2,664
Local - law enforcement services 113,500 113,600 115,328 1,828
Local - ambulance services 7,600 7,500 8,214 714
Local - other services 7,090 7,020 5,863 {1,227)
Total Intergovernmental Charges for Seivices 130,580 130,580 134,569 3,979
INVESTMENT INCOME :
Investment incame 13,203 13,203 8,668 {4,535}
Total Investment Income 13,203 13,203 8,668 {4,535)
MISCELLANEOUS
Rent : 22,100 22,100 19,230 {2,870)
Miscellaneous revenue 1,750 1,750 6,999 5,249
Donations ) 50,000 50,000 52,355 2,355
Total Miscellanecus ' 73,850 73,850 78,5684 4,734
TOTAL REVENUES $ 3,765,794 § 3,760,794 § 5,779,247 § 13,453
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET TQ ACTUAL -
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Qriginal Final Actual Final Budget
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Viltage Board $ 58,767 $ 92953 $ 104,005 $ (11,052)
Historical Preservation 730 434 426 8
Municipal court 26,425 26,581 26,581 -
Village Administration - Finance 72,512 63,006 67,881 {4,875)
Village Clerk - Treasurer 161,072 177,522 178,504 {982}
Elections 24,882 25,429 25,251 178
Assessment of property 53,200 57,347 57,347 -
Lagal - 71,250 71,250 71,661 {411)
Village hall 38,875 47,285 47,285 -
Independsnt audit 26,000 27,778 27,778 -
Properly and liability insurance 103,480 112,027 112,042 {15)
Board of review 1,100 118 117 1
Tolal General Government 638,293 701,730 718,878 (17,148)
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police department 2,103,792 2,126,181 2,137,129 (10,948}
Bullding nspection 152,302 135,739 135,740 (N
Emergency government 1,450 1,415 1,415 -
Dam 9,873 11,726 11,727 (1)
Total Public Safety 2,267,417 2,275,081 2,288,011 (10,850)
PUBLIC WORKS
Engineering 45,000 57,133 57,541 (408)
Public Works Administration 206,568 251,030 251,029 1
Machinery operation and maintenance 87,282 83,856 83,857 H
Garage and sheds 62,703 38,713 38,713 -
Curb and gutter 8,623 286 286 .
Tree and brush removai 6,006 664 664 -
Garbage Collection 6,116 5,142 5,142 -
Sirest signs 18,820 7,116 7,115 1
Bridges, culvers, and rivers . 2,687 1,173 1,173 -
Street cleaning 10,878 12,245 12,245 -
Snow and ice contral ' 157,854 98,032 78,107 19,825
Alleys and local purpose roads 66,755 39,793 39,793 -
Street lighting 120,600 129,056 129,056 -
Storm sewer maintenance 15,080 - 6,444 6,444 -
Total Public Works 812,882 730,683 711,165 19,518
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Endad December 31, 2012

CURRENT {continued)

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pubiic health services

Total Health and Human Services

CULTURE, RECREATION AND EDUCATION
Museum
Parks
Celebration and entertainment

Total Cullure, Recreation and Education

CONSERVATION AND DEVELOFMENT
Forestry
Weed control
Planning commission
Economic development
Environmental protection

Tolal Conservation and Development

CAPITAL QUTLAY
Public Safety
Law enforcement

Total Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Budgeted Amounis

Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
2,900 2,725 2,725 -
2,900 2725 2,725 -
20,600 8,922 8,923 {1)
113,485 137,754 137,754 -
4,573 5,213 5213 -
138,658 151,889 151,890 {1)
3,368 1,370 1,370 -
2,478 1,268 257 1,011
74,232 130,419 94,048 36,371
10,000 20,376 20,376 -
15,303 - - -
105,371 153,433 116,051 37,362
- - 100 (160}
B . 100 (100)
3,965,521 % 4015521 § 30686820 & 28,701
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VILLAGE CF MUKWONAGO

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Revolving Park
Library Recycling Loan Land Site  Stormwater
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 205008 §$ 153,658 $ 201,856 $ 209,548 % -
Taxes receivable 387,262 494,521 - - -
Accounts receivable - 537 - - 2,832
Pue from other funds - - - - 47,500
Prepaid items 14,599 617 - - 663
Restricted cash and investments N - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 696869 § 649,334 $ 201,856 $ 200,548 § 50,995
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 10,892 & 57,382 § - % - $ -
Accrued liabilities 25,413 712 - - 472
Due to other funds 91 18,606 - “ 27,048
Defarred revenue 387,262 489,886 - - -
Due to other governments - - 115,000 - -
Total Liabilities 423,458 566,586 115,000 - 27,520

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 14,589 617 - - 663
Restricted 258,812 - 86,856 - -
Committed - 82,131 - 209,548 22,812
Total Fund Balances 273,411 82,748 86,856 209,548 23,475

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES $ 6968069 $ 649,334 $ 201,856 $ 200,548 $ 50,095

Page 58




Special

Revenue
Funds Capital Projects Funds
2010
Impact Capital 2009 Taxable GO Total
Fee Projects GO Bond  Note (BAB) Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ - 1,450,807 § 919,696 $189,230 20,494 $§ 3,649,862
- - - - - 949,783
- - - - - 6,834
. - - - 1,432 48,932
“ - - - “ 15,879
1,484,148 - - - - 1,484,148
$1,484,148 1 ,45@807 $ 910,696 $ 189,230 30,926 6,155,438
$ 6,186 11,687 - $ 27,372 30,926 161,436
- - - - - 26,597
- 1,856 - 1,432 - 54,037
- - - - - 945,148
- . - - 115,000
6,186 13,543 - - 28,804 30,926 1,302,218
- - - - - 15,879
1,477,962 - - - - 1,823,630
- 1,437,264 819,696 160,426 - 3,013,711
1,477,962 1,437,264 919,696 160,426 4,853,220
$1,484,148 $ 1,450,807 $ 919696 $ 189,230 30,926 $ 6,155,438
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Revoiving
Library Recycling Loan Park Land Stormwater
Fund Fund Fund Site Fund Fund
REVENUES
Taxes $ 387,262 $ 477,184 B - $ - 8 -
Intergovernmental 416,850 22,243 - 51,566 -
Licenses and permits - - - 27,164 10,764
Public charges for services 37,971 08,695 - - -
Intergovernmental charges for services - - - - -
Investment income 930 1,814 1,175 462 13
Other revenues 33,082 - - - -
Total Revenues 876,995 599,946 1,175 79,192 10,777
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works - 614,277 - - 55,495
Culture, recreation and education 766,457 - - ) - -
Capital Qutlay 105,219 - - 9,436 -
Total Expenditures 871,676 614,277 - 9,436 55,496
Excess (deficiency) of revenues .
over expenditures 5,319 {14,331) 1,175 69,756 (44,718)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - - 47,500
Transfers out - - - - -

Proceeds on the sale of capilal asssts - - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) - - - - 47,500
Net Changes in Fund Balances 5,318 (14,331} 1,176 69,756 2,782
FUND BALANCES -

Beginning of Year 268,002 97,079 85,681 139,792 20,693

FUND BALANCES -

END OF YEAR $ 273411 § 82748 $ 86,856 $ 200548 $§ 23475
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Special

Revenue
Funds Capital Projecls Funds
2010
Impact Capital 2010 Library Capital 2009 Taxable GO Total
Fee Projects GO Bond Building Equipment GO Bond Note (BAB) Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ - 8 - $ - $ - $ 88,075 § - % - § 902,531
- - - - 46,197 - - 536,856
95,442 - - - - - - 133,370
- - - - - - - 136,666
- - - - 108,988 - - 108,988
2,404 2,956 1,765 11 685 931 175 13,321
- 247,560 - - 2,748 - - 284,280
97,846 250,516 1,765 1k 196,693 93 176 2,116,022
- - - - - - - 669,772
- - - - - - - 766,457
60,678 120,196 141,168 - 359,401 407,296 50,744 1,254,138
60,678 120,196 141,168 - 359,401 407,296 50,744 2,690,367
37,168 130,320  {139,403) 19 {162,708) (406,365) (60,568} (574,345)
- - - - 165,500 - 1,432 214,432
- - - - - (1,432) - (1,432)
- - - - 16,747 - - 16,747
- - - - 182,247 {1432 1,432 226,747
37,168 130,320  {139,403) 11 19,539 (407,797} {49,137} (344,598)
1,440,794 1,306,944 1,059,028 7,682 154,602 568,223 49,137 5,187,818
$ 1,477,962 $ 1,437.264 § 919696 $ 7,693 § 174,141 & 160,426 % - $4,853,220
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BAKER TILLY

Baker Tiily Virchow Krause, LLP
777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor
Milwankee, W153202-5313

el 414 777 5500

fax 418777 5555

bakertilly.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago
Mukwonago, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet, Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project Revenues,
and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments and Historical Summary of Sources, Uses, and Status
of funds of the Village of Mukwonago's Tax Incremental District No. 3 as of December 31, 2012 and from the
date of creatlon through December 31, 2012 and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsiblfity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica: this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from materkal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from materlal misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Village of Mukwonago's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of
Mukwonago's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit svidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion,

%?) 2 dpazadest matber ol
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To the Village Board
Village of Mukwonago

Opinion

i our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the financial
position and the net project costs ta be recovered through tax increments as of December 31, 2012 and the
sources, uses, and status of funds from the date of creation through December 31, 2012, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the transactions of Tax Incremental District No.3
and do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the Village of Mukwonago, Wisconsin,
as of December 31, 2012, and the changes In its financial position and, where applicable, its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysls that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financlal reporting for placing the financlal
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the financial
statemenis is not affectad by this missing information.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collsctively
comprise the Village of Mukwonago's basic financial statements. The Historical Summary of Sources, Uses and
Status of Funds and Detailed Summary of Capital Expenditures are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financtal statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Historical Summary of Sources, Uses
and Status of Funds and Detailed Summary of Capital Expenditures are fairly stated In all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

'ﬁnﬂ—\.g_% Viidpae Xomvtene, LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May 22, 2013
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

BALANCE SHEET
As of Decembar 31, 2012

Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Due from other funds

Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

Liabilities

Accrued liabilities
Due to stormwater
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable

Restricted

Total Fund Balances

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Capital
Projects
Fund

$ 793,994
623,239
13,016

135

$ 1,430,384

$ 167
47,500

623,239

670,906

135
758,343

768,478

$ 1,430,384
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES -

AND NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

PROJECT COSTS
Capital expenditures
Financing costs
Transfers to other funds
Interest on long-term debt
Total Costs

PROJECT REVENUES
Tax increments
Exempt computer aid
Investment income
Other
Premium on long term debt
Total Revenues

NET COST RECOVERABLE
THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2012

Reconciliation of Recoverable Costs
Fund balance
Long-term debt outstanding

NET COST RECOVERABLE
THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS - DEGEMBER 31, 2012

See accompanying notes to financia! statements.

$ 6,764,012
280,558
622,089

2,377,508
10,054,165

4,065,501
58,964
440,941
103
200,673
4,766,182

$ 5,287,983

$ (759,478)
6,047,461

$_ 5,287,983
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES AND STATUS OF FUNDS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Tax increments $ 4,065,501
Exempt computer aid 58,964
Investment income 440,941
Other 103
Premium on long term debt 200,673
Proceeds of long-term debt 34,956,161
Total Sources 39,722,343
USES OF FUNDS
Capital expenditures 6,764,012
Financing costs 290,558
Transfers to other funds 622,089
Principal on long-term debt 28,908,700
Interest on long-term debt 2,377,508
Total Usses . _ 38,962,865
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2012 3 759,478

Ses accompanying notes to financial statements. Page 5




VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Village of Mukwonago's Tax Incremental District No. 3 (the
“District”) conform to accounting principles as applicable to governmental units and as defined by
Wisconsin Statues Section 86.1105.

The Village of Mukwonago has implemented accounting principles generally accepted In the
United States of America to the extent they apply in determining the scope of the activity to Tax
incremental District No. 3. The accompanying financial statements reflect all the significant
operations of the Village of Mukwonago's Tax Incremental District No. 3. The accompanying
financial statements do no indicate the full presentation of the Village of Mukwonago.

A. DESCRIPTION OF FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STRUCTURE

This report contains the financial information of the Village of Mukwonago’s Tax Incremental
District No. 3. The summary statements were prepared from data recorded in the following
village funds and village long-term debt:

Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Detailed descriptions of the purpose of these funds can be found in the Village of Mukwonago's
basic financlal statements.

The data was consolidated for purposes of this report. Therefore, the amounts shown in the
accompanying statements will not directly correlate with amounts shown In the basie financial
statements.

The District was created under the provisions of Wisconsin Statute Section 66.1105. The
purpose of that section is to allow a municipality to recover development and improvements
costs in a designated area from the property taxes generated on the increased value of the
property after the creation date of the District. The tax on the increased valug is called a tax
increment.

The statutes allow the municipality to collect tax increments until the net project cost has been
fully recovered, or until 23 years after the creation date, whichever occurs first. Project costs
uncollecied at the dissolution date are absorbed by the Village of Mukwonago. Project costs
may be incurred up to five years before the unintended termination date of the district.

Creation Last Date tolncur Last Year to
Date Project Cosis Collect Increment
TIDNo. 3 January 1, 2003 December 31, 2020 2026
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICGIES (continued)

B. BASIs OF ACCOUNTING

The modified accrual basis of accounting was followed in the preparation of these statements.
Under the modified accrual hasis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thersafter to be used to pay Habilitles of the current period. Project costs, other
than interest an long-term debt, are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

District increments are recorded as revenues in the year due. Intergovernmental aids and grants
are recognized as revenues in the period the related expenditures are 1ncurred if applicable, or
when the village is entitled to the aids,

Other general revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available
under the criteria described above.

C. Use orF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statemants in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amountis of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. MEASUREMENT Focus

The measurement focus of all governmental funds Is the funds flow concept. Under the funds
flow concept, sources and uses of financial resources, including capital outlays, debt proceeds
and debt retirements are reflected in operations. Resources not available fo finance expenditures
and commitments of the current period are recognized as deferred revenue or as nonspendable
fund equity. Liabilities for claims, judgements, compensated absences and pension contributions
which will not be currently liquidated using expendable avallable financial resources are shown in
the long-term debt fooinote disclosure. The related expenditures are recognized when the
liabilities are liquidated.

E. PROJECT PLAN BUDGETS
The estimated revenues and expenditures of the District are adopted in the project plan. Those

estimates are for the entire life of the District, and may not be comparable fo interim results
presented in this report.
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F. LoNG-TErM DEBT

Short-term liabilities are recorded as fund liabilities. All other long-term liabilities are shown in
the long-term debt footnote disclosure.

Proceeds of tong-term debt issues not recorded as fund liabilities are reflected as "Sources of
Funds” in the operating statement of the recipient fund. Retirement of these issues is reported as
an expenditure in the year in which the debt matures or is repald, whichever is earlier.

G. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

Clalms and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and
judgments is only reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are
disclosed in the long-term debt footnote when the related liabilities are incurred. There were no
significant claims or judgments atf year end.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

The District invests its funds in accordance with the provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes
66.0603 (1m) and 67.11{2).

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted
market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record
investments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in
investment income.

The District, as a fund of the Village of Mukwonago, maintains separate and common cash and
investment accounts at the same financial institutions utilized by the Vililage of Mukwonago.
Federal depository insurance and the State of Wisconsin Guarantee fund insurance apply o the
Village of Mukwonago as an individual municipality and, accordingly, the amount of insured
funds Is not determinable for the District.

NOTE 3 - TAX INCREMENT

The tax increment from the 2012 tax roll which will be recorded as revenue In 2013 is $623,239.
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‘VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the
Village of Mukwonago. Notes and bonds borrowed to finance the District's expenditures will be
retired by tax increments accumulated by the capital projects fund. If those revenues are not
sufficient, payments will be made by future tax levies or utility revenues, as applicable.

Original
Date of Due interest Indebted- Balance
Title of Issus Issue Date Rates ness Rapaid 12/31/2012

BANS 3172003 3/1/2005 2.00% $ 4420000 $ 4,420,000 % -
BANS 3172005 3/1/2008 3.30% 5,450,000 5,450,000 -
BANS 3/1/2009 12/1/2012 3.50% 971,140 971,140 -
Water and Sewer Revenue BANS 31/2003 3/1/2005 2.40% 5,235,000 5,235,000 -
Water and Sewer Revenus BANS 3/1/2005 31/2008 3.30% 5,806,400 5,808,400
Water and Sewer Revenue BANS 1/1/2008 12/1/2012 4,00% 1,441,000 1,441,000 -
G.0. Promissory Notes 4/1/2007 10/1/2017 4,00% 638,078 172,259 465,819
G.O. Promissory Notes 11172008 12/1/2012  3.5-3.75% 5,300,000 5,300,000 -
G.0. Promissory Notes 11/1/2011 10/1/2021  1.0-3.0% 2,074,543 112,901 1,061,642
G.0. Refunding Bonds 11/1/2012 10/1/2025  1.0-2.50% 3,820,000 - 3,620,000

Totals $ 34,956,161 $ 28,808,700 $ 6,047,461

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on the bonds and notes payable are as

follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $& 364,200 $ 130,064 § 494,264
2014 431,850 129,208 561,058
2015 431,850 120,842 552,792
2016 484,253 111,003 595,256
2017 502,280 100,063 602,343
2018 391,125 91,267 482,392
2019 391,125 84,342 475,467
2020 405,238 76,086 481,324
2021 1,220,540 67,054 1,287,594
2022 275,000 33,188 308,188
2023 275,000 27,344 302,344
2024 275,000 21,156 296,156
2025 300,000 14,625 314,625
2026 300,000 7,500 307,500

$ 6,047,461 $ 1,013,842 $ 7,061,303

Page 9




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES AND STATUS OF FUNDS
From Date of Greation Through December 31, 2012

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Tax increments
Exempt computer alid
Investment fncome
Other
Premium on long-term debt
Proceads of long-term debt

Total Sources

USES OF FUNDS
Capital expendilures
Financing costs
Transfers to other funds
Principal on long-term debt
Interest on long-term debt

Total Uses

FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2012

2002-2007 2008 2009
$ 1121271 § 712,392 § 373,286
21,515 9,838 7,466
287,625 112,239 18,301
103 - -
- 78,512 8,828
21,549,478 6,741,000 871,140
22,979,992 7,653,081 1,379,021
6,309,864 62,808 278,310
8,624 123,419 22,018
9,655,000 11,360,060 353,660
864,872 391,989 301,761
16,838,360 11,928,277 955,746
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2010 2011 2012 Totals
$ 625,712 $ 575,471 657,369 $ 4,085,501
8,738 6,482 4,925 58,064
6,083 12,294 4,399 440,941
- - - 103
- 31,535 81,798 200,673
- 2,074,543 3,620,000 34,956,161
640,633 2,760,325 4,368,491 39,722,343
44,619 58,417 19,993 6,764,012
15,762 45,225 76,5613 280,558
- 574,588 47,500 622,089
366,300 2,429,460 4,744,220 28,908,700
296,110 283,147 239,627 2,377,606
722,791 3,320,838 5,126,853 38,962,865
$_ 750478
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VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

DETAILED SUMMARY OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
From Date of Creation Through December 31, 2012

Project
Plan
Actual Estimate
Water main $ - $ 5BB3T2
Sanitary sewer - 1,217,305
Storm water 3,166,139 4,002,500
Roads 3,697,873 4,548,281
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $ 6,764,012 $ 10,326,458
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